
Here are some of the reasons put forward against Sunday golf by the 
local chapels:-

Calcoed Chapel 30/11/31

The green in front of  the chapel 

causes grave disquiet and 

Sunday drinking would be a 

constant offence to the 

Commoners.

Sunday drinking would be “repugnant” 

to His Grace’s Brynford tenants.

Saron Chapel 2/12/31

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



Here are some more reasons put forward against Sunday golf by Pen-y-
Pyllau chapel:-

Pen-y-Pyllau Chapel 6/12/31
Departs from the 

tradition of quiet 

Sabbath observance and 

outrages the feelings of 

the Parishioners and 

Commoners.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council

The opening of the 

clubhouse offers 

facilities for Sabbath 

drinking which all 

would greatly deplore.



Yet more reasons put forward against Sunday golf by the local parish 
church:-

Parishioners 

cannot get to 

public worship 

without crossing 

the links.

Sunday golf will interfere 

with the Commoners’ 

freedom and in any case 

the links are not suitable 

for Sunday golf. 

Brynford Rectory 3/12/31

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



December 28th 1931 – Letter from E. Redfern (Grosvenor Estates) to R. S Jones 
(secretary) informing the golf club that the Duke will cancel clause (6) of the 
1906 license and permit Sunday golf from January 1st 1932. His grace would like 
there to be an agreement reached on the matter with the local religious bodies. 

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



January 5th 1932 – Letter from the Grosvenor Estates’ solicitors, 
Boodle and Hatfield to E Redfern (Grosvenor Estates) suggesting 
that as Sunday golf permission has now been granted this is the 
time for the club to pay more than a nominal rent.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



January 23rd 1932 – Letter from R. S. Jones (secretary) to E. 
Redfern (Grosvenor Estates) thanking the Duke for giving 
permission to play golf on Sundays and saying there was “little 
opposition” from the Commoners.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



January 28th 1932 – Letter from the Duke’s solicitors to E. Redfern 
(Grosvenor Estates) informing him that they had received a call from the 
solicitor of the local religious bodies informing him that Sunday play had 
commenced without any agreement being reached with them. 

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



February 15th 1932 – Letter from R. S. Jones (secretary) to E. Redfern 
(Grosvenor Estates) informing him that conversations had now been 
held with the local religious bodies to ascertain what conditions would 
be acceptable to them in order for them not to object to the playing of 
golf on a Sunday.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



February 15th 1932 – Four conditions were agreed: a) Not to play on the two tees 
near Calcoed chapel, b) No caddies employed on a Sunday so that they might be 
able to attend Sunday school, c) Club staff to be freed up after 5:30 p.m. to 
attend church and d) No competitions to be played on a Sunday.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



February 29th 1932 – Letter from E. Redfern (Grosvenor Estates) to Boodle 
and Hatfield (The Duke’s solicitors)  saying that as the club is abiding by the 
four action points, he sees no point in any further objections by the local 
religious bodies.  
Also he notes that the club will agree to a new license from His Grace and 
accept an increased rent of £5 per year.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



The Westminster Cup



March 26th 1924 – Letter from H. T. Roberts (club captain) to E. 
Redfern (Grosvenor Estates) asking if he could approach the 
president (The Duke) to appeal for a presentation cup to be played 
for annually.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



May 2nd 1924 – Letter from the Grosvenor Head Office in London to 
E. Redfern (Grosvenor Estates) saying that the Duke will be pleased 
to give a presentation trophy. 

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



6th May 1924 – Letter from the secretary to E. 
Redfern (Grosvenor estates) thanking the Duke for 
his kindness.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



July 22nd 1924 – Letter from H. A. Roberts (captain) to E. Redfern 
(Grosvenor estates) proposing the conditions for the Duke’s cup.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



September 11th 1924 – Letter from E. Redfern (Grosvenor estates) to H. T. 
Roberts (captain) stating the conditions the Duke would like for his trophy – it 
was to be match play with an initial qualifying round of medal play after which 
the best 16 players would compete for the cup.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



September 12th 1924 – Letter from H. T. Roberts (captain) 
to E. Redfern (Grosvenor estates) accepting the playing 
terms for the Duke of Westminster’s Cup.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council



What Lies Beneath



You might think this is just a photo of the 
10th green and 11th yellow tee 



It is actually a photo of the entrance and 
winding shafts of the New Pant y Ne lead 
mine forgotten for over one hundred years.
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The three lead 

lodes of the New 

Pant-y-Ne mine 

(eastern, middle 

and western), run 

under the pro’s 
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yellow 11th tee.
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Section of the New Pant-y-Ne Mine 1895

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council

The two shafts (entrance 
and winding) near the 10th

green and 11th yellow tee 
descend 210 feet.



Proposal to Develop the New Pant-y-Ne Mine 1895

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives

& Flintshire County Council

The proposed £5,000 development (which 

included an engine house and a new 500 

foot deep shaft) was never carried out.



One of the last proprietors of the New Pant y Ne mine was a William Arnott from Newton le 
Willows who, on the 16th of June 1897, took on a two year lease from the Duke of Westminster 
for a royalty payment of 3/40th of the value of the lead ore extracted.

Sources:-
Grosvenor Estate Archives
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